
AGENDA OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

August 22nd, 2024 
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER  

PUBLIC FORUM 

APPROVE AGENDA 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Approve July 25, 2024, PC Meeting Minutes* (pp. 2-3)
B. Set November and December alternative meeting dates to avoid holidays
C. Appeal Regarding Approval of the Building Permit at 160 Cedar

1. Review of Appeal
a. Appeal* (pp. 4-6)
b. Building Permit* (pp. 7-42)
c. City Engineer Response to Appeal* (pp. 43-54)

2. Recommendation on the Appeal for the City Council

ADJOURN 

1



                     MEETING MINUTES (Draft)  

 Birchwood Planning Commission Regular Meeting  

                                               City Hall - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting 7/25/2024 

     Submitted by Michael Kraemer – secretary 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: – Michael McKenzie – Vice Chairperson, Michael Kraemer, 
Casey Muhm,  

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:, Andy Sorenson, Michelle Maiers-Atakpu   

OTHERS PRESENT: Council Member Ryan Hankins – Council Member 

  TO ORDER: Meeting called to order by Vice-Chairperson McKenzie at 7:05 PM.   

1. PUBLIC FORUM  
a. none 

2. APPROVE AGENDA 
a. Motion by Muhm, 2nd by McKenzie to approve agenda as presented. Vote: Yes -

3, No – 0. Motion passed.  
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Item A – Review/Approve June 27, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
i. Motion by Muhm, 2nd by Kraemer to approve the minutes. Vote: Yes – 

3, No – 0, Motion passed. 
b. Item B –  Revisions to Variance Application Requirements –  Replacement 

Subsection 304.020 City Code 
1.  Review and Discuss Variance Application –   

i. Document centered around providing as much 
variance application guidance as possible in effort 
to improve the quality and completeness of the 
variance applications being submitted to the 
Planning Commission.   

2. Discuss Recommendations to City Council 
a. Planning Commission Recommendation: It is the opinion 

of the Planning Commission that the draft document as 
presented was a good discussion on the details and 
expectations on the quality and thoroughness expected by 
the Planning Commission.  Advisory Motion by McKenzie 
and 2nd by Muhm recommending the Council approve the 
document as submitted.    Advisory Vote: Yes – 3, No – 0. 

4. Suggested additional agenda Item for August, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. Set 
dates for November and December, 2024 Planning Commission meetings since the 4th 
Thursday of each of these month’s conflicts with Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays. 

2



 

 ADJOURN 7:37 PM 

a. Motion by Motion by Muhm, 2nd by Kraemer to adjourn meeting. Vote: Yes - 3, 
No – 0. Motion passed.   

 

  

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10

Mike Capra

Mike Capra

Mike Capra

Mike Capra
Curb stop

Mike Capra



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



South East North West
S1 Wall Total Elv E1.1 Wall Total Elv N1 Wall Total Elv W1.1 Wall Total Elv

Length 9.5 161.5 Length 22 663.3 Length 7 219.1 Length 11.5 253
E1 1007 E 1004 E 1007 E 1008
E2 1007 Max 1034.15 Max 1038.3 Max 1030
Max 1024 E1.1 N2 W1.2

s2 Length 10 343 Length 8.5 261.8 Length 24.5 742.35
Length 8.25 237.6 E 1004 E 1007.5 E 1008
E1 1007 Max 1038.3 Max 1038.3 Max 1038.3
E2 1006 E2 N3 W2
Max 1035.3 Length 4 121.2 Length 11.5 348.45 Length 11.5 312.225

s3 E 1008 E 1008 E 1007
Length 8.25 270.60 Max 1038.3 Max 1038.3 Max 1034.15
E1 1005 E3 N4.1
E2 1006 Length 9.5 209 Length 12 327.6
Max 1038.3 E 1008 E 1008

s4 Max 1030 Max 1035.3
Length 8.25 278.85 E4 N4.2
E3 1005 Length 2 44 Length 9.5 171
E4 1004 E 1008 E 1008
Max 1038.3 Max 1030 Max 1026

s5
Length 14.25 488.775
E5 1004
E6 1004
Max 1038.3

Total Side PerimTotal Elv Total Side PerimTotal Elv Total Side PerimTotal Elv Total Side PerimTotal Elv
48.5 1437.325 47.5 1380.5 48.5 1327.95 47.5 1307.575

Perimeter Total Elv
South 48.5 1437.325
East 47.5 1380.5
North 48.5 1327.95
West 47.5 1307.575
Total 192 5453.35
Average Height 28.4 ft

42



 

H:\BIRCHWVI_CI_MN\0N1129848\1_Corres\C_To Others\City\160 Cedar Appeal\160 Appeals Memo 8-13-2024.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 8-13-2024 

To: Rebecca Kellen, City of Birchwood Village 

From: Marcus Johnson, Bolton & Menk 

Subject: 160 Cedar Appeal 

 City of Birchwood Village 

 Project No.: 0N1.131471 

 

 

 

Rebecca, 

Behind this memo is Bolton and Menk’s response to the appeal in red. Behind the appeal are the 

attachments that go along with the response to the appeal. 

 

Should the planning commission or city council like more information please reach out to me.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 

Marcus Johnson PE 

Associate Project Engineer 

 

 

43



 

 

 

 

City Clerk 

207 Birchwood Avenue 

White Bear Lake, MN S5110 

 

 
July 15, 2024 

160 Cedar Street 

Birchwood, MN 55110 

 

Re: Appeal of City permit issued for 160 Cedar Street 

 
Dear City Clerk: 

 

Pursuant to the letter we received from your city attorney dated June 18, 2024, we are appealing the 

permit issued by the City of Birchwood Village for 160 Cedar Street in Birchwood. There are a number of 

code provisions the City has failed to apply. These are the issues and the code that should have been 

applied: 
 

“Birchwood Code 301.055 (7) Stormwater and erosion control plans. For a building permit, the 

applicant must submit stormwater and erosion control plans prepared and signed by a licensed 

professional engineer.” This has not been done. 

And “The stormwater management plan must detail how stormwater will be controlled to 

prevent damage to adjacent property”. There are no drainage control structures or any 

provision for impoundment/containment of water at and within 160 Cedar Street. 

a. As far as I am aware, the city has granted the option of a licensed engineer or a 

surveyor. It is signed by a licensed surveyor.  

b. Due to the nature of the project it was not required to be signed off by a licensed 

engineer on the plans. 

• We have asked for a structural engineer signature for more complex 

structures. For example, a retaining wall larger than 4’ tall would require a 

engineer’s sign off.  

c. Erosion control is on the survey drawing and is following the MPCA requirements as far 

as BMP’s (Best management practices) are concerned. See attached survey document. 

 

2. “Birchwood Code 301 NOTE: A separate Conditional Use Permit is not required for a land 

disturbance activity in conjunction with construction as part of a building permit as granted. 

However, as part of the Building Permit application, the applicant shall provide information 

required pursuant to Section 306.030 and shall follow all provisions of Section 302.050...and 

302.055”. 

 

a. Birchwood Code 302.050 states “to reduce the unwanted harmful effects of 

stormwater, it is policy of the City of Birchwood Village that each property within the 

City manage its own stormwater to limit runoff into streets, waterways, and neighboring 

properties.“ 

• See survey attachment where drainage arrows have been applied. If you 

follow my drainage arrows (if constructed per plans), drainage would 

follow near the property line but not cross. 44



 

b. “Birchwood Code 302.055 (2)(a)(1) No construction or alteration of new or existing 

structures or land topography shall be done to increase the rate of storm water runoff 

from the parcel as compared to the runoff rate before such construction or alteration 

unless: . . . .” (Note: none of the exceptions listed apply.) 

• The existing house that was on the property prior (approximately 

5300 square feet of impervious) was compared to the impervious 

proposed in the current building permit (3500 square feet of 

impervious). I have attached an impervious area map for the 

proposed building and the google maps image showing the 

approximate previous house on the property. The existing building 

appears to primarily be on 160 Cedar’s property, which is why the 

impervious area of the existing building was included in the analysis 

of this building permit. Since there was no survey of the previous 

house, Google maps was used to verify the amount of impervious 

was onsite prior  to the demolition. In looking at this, the city would 

see a decrease in the rate of storm water runoff as there is proposed 

to date. In future building permits of the two remaining lots there 

would be the potential for an increase in rate runoff should they be 

developed.   

• On the attached survey from the 160 Cedar building permit, the 

square footage of impervious area that is running to the low point at 

the back of the property is noted at approximately 1250 square feet. 

When comparing the existing contours shown on the provided 

survey, the drainage pattern does not appear to be significantly 

changing onsite. So it appears to me the back yard low spot would 

not see an increase in the rate of storm water runoff. 

 

Per the builder’s survey dated 4/25/2024, the increase in impervious surface is 3500 square 

feet. Much of that impervious surface will drain directly onto our property. There are no 

45



containment provisions included in the plan, nor are there any calculations for runoff or analysis 

of any soils to determine the infiltration rate of storm water. 

The city engineer, at a site meeting with us on June 11, 2024, stated he calculated there 

would be no increased runoff based on a “quick calculation that I just did in my head" and he 

included in his impervious “analysis” a garage that was torn down three years prior. The city 

code does not provide for the long- demolished garage to be included since the runoff must be 

“compared to the runoff rate before such construction or alteration”. And the engineer’s 

“analysis” was not presented as a "signed” evaluation. 

 

See the attached survey where drainage arrows have been applied. 1250 square feet of 

the impervious surface would run to the low point. As shown in my interpretation the 

drainage would run along the property. 

 
c. Birchwood Code 306.030 (a)(6) requires “a description of soils of the site, including a 

map indicating soil types of the areas to be disturbed.“ This has not been done. 

A Site Construction Plan is required including 
 

“(2) Locations and dimensions of all temporary soil and construction materials.” This 

has not been done. 

“(3) Locations and dimensions of all construction site erosion control and permanent 

stabilization measures to meet City and State Code both during and after the construction 

process.” This has not been done. 
 

“(4) Schedule of anticipated starting and ending dates of each land disturbance activity 

and construction site erosion control, storm water runôff control, and inspection, and 

maintenance activity.” This has not been done. 

 

Plat of Final Site Conditions is required including 
 

“(3) A drainage plan of the developed site including final storm water drainage systems 

and natural drainage patterns on and immediately adjacent to the site with delineation of the 

direction in which storm water is conveyed from the site." This has not been done. 

Section 306 is a Conditional Use section. A conditional use permit was not needed in 

the application. 

d. Birchwood Code 306.030(b) “Demonstration that the work will not adversely affect 

...the adjacent parcels of land." This has not been done. 
 

Our property will incur additional runoff due to the city’s failure to apply the city code as required. We 

have consulted a licensed, professional engineer. They have been advised that low area delineated by 

elevation 1002 feet on the site survey, and endorsed as the drainage area by the city engineer, will 

cause water to intrude onto our property at that elevation. Due to the Lack of runoff calculations and 

analysis of soil types, it is impossible to know how much water will pond and how long it will take to 

infiltrate. Regardless, the ground floor elevation of our house Is at least five feet below this ponding 

area. This additional runoff puts our house at risk for water infiltration and/or flooding—neither of 

which have we previously experienced. The ground floor elevation is finished, and any water damage to 
46



it will be substantial. This damage will be a direct result of the City’s failure to require any drainage 

controls as mandated by city code. 

 

 

To fully respond to the feedback from the consulted engineer, I would need to see the conclusions of the 

professional engineer employed to understand what their model parameters are. I would be happy to 

consult with their engineer.  

 

It would take a large enough storm for ponding to occur in this low point. When ponding occurs, it would 

start just below 1002’ in elevation. The low elevation of 160 Cedar is approximately 1003.7. The low 

elevation of the closest neighbor (180 Cedar) is the windowsill at 1004’ or 1003.8’ along the south side of 

the house. Should ponding occur, it would require approximately 9600 cubic feet of ponding to occur prior 

to flooding of homes should occur. 160 Cedar would see flooding prior to surrounding neighbors, at this 

point, the area of 160 Cedar low floor would be included in the ponding area prior to 180 Cedar seeing 

water. To date, it has been assumed that the neighbor’s basement walls are in good condition. Based on 

the attached email dated 4/25/2024 from the neighbor of 160 Cedar, it has been acknowledged that this 

low point does occasionally hold water and with no history of flooding when the existing house and garage 

of 176 Cedar was in place. It is my understanding 180 Cedar does not have a sump pump, which 

additionally suggests the low point ponding has not risen to a point of concern to date. The photos sent to 

the city on 8/9/2024, is not concerning as it has been my understanding that ponding has occurred at the 

low point historically during large rain events. See the attached survey for the location of the silt fence. As 

shown on the survey, the silt fence runs right through the low point. Ponding should still be expected to 

occur during large rain events. The silt fence’s purpose is to retain sediment from leaving the site, which in 

return may restrict water to flow through leaving or coming onto the site. 

 

With the concern expressed on the future properties being built, should those plans show drainage leaving 

the property onto 160 Cedar as the existing contours show to date. That set of plans would violate city 

code 302.050 which would trigger further investigation. 

 

Furthermore, the building area of the lot immediately to the west of 160 Cedar Street drains almost 

exclusively to our property. In our May 17, 2024 email to the city engineer, we attempted to have City 

Engineer Marcus Johnson address this issue. He responded, ”Yhat is where I recommended coming up 

with a drainage agreement between the three neighbors essentially in an agreement saying if there are 

any issues back there that the three property owners will come up with a solution together”. This 

statement is in contravention to the planning and building requirements of the city’s code. 
 

The city has a responsibility to protect our property. This failure will result in substantial, ongoing 

damage to our property and is an unlawful taking of our property without just compensation. We ask 

that you remedy the problem immediately by requiring the above-referenced code be applied and 

enforced as part of the permit issued for 160 Cedar Street. 

 

 

47



We appreciate your prompt response. 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

Rachael and David Drew 

 

 

In summary, Bolton and Menk received the attached survey and the building layout, traffic control plan, 

and the permit itself. Most of the site’s drainage is reviewed from the survey drawing. To determine which 

portion of the house drains off to the back of the property, it was required to review the building layout. 

The city code requires storm water management for all new impervious surfaces. However, it is not as 

clear as to what level of management is needed when the impervious percentage is less than 25% across 

the site. As shown in the survey, this property is proposed to only have 7% of surfaces be impervious on 

the property. The code also does not cover what level of treatment is needed for the stormwater runoff 

that comes on site from surrounding properties and whose responsibility it is to manage. The permit was 

approved since the low point was onsite with no variance or conditional use permit. If the permit showed 

25% or more impervious onsite or if the drainage left the site, a more in-depth management plan would be 

asked of the 160 Cedar permit. At that point, a SWPPP signed by a licensed engineer would also be 

required assuming calculations that would need to be signed off would be involved.

48



49

marcusjo
Area Measurement
628.48 sf

marcusjo
Area Measurement
405.13 sf

marcusjo
Area Measurement
214.07 sf

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Text Box
STOPS HERE

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Arrow

marcusjo
Callout
Erosion control(silt fence)

marcusjo
Callout
Erosion control (rock construction entrance)

marcusjo
Rectangle

marcusjo
Rectangle

marcusjo
Rectangle

marcusjo
Rectangle

marcusjo
Callout
red area is the area draining to back yard low point

marcusjo
Callout
red arrows are showing drainage patterns as read from the contours.

marcusjo
Callout
roughly the same elevation as the window well

marcusjo
Callout
part of the erosion control suggested was missing

marcusjo
Callout
licensed survey

marcusjo
Callout
impervious calculations

marcusjo
Highlight



50



51



52



1

Marcus Johnson

From: Rachael Drew <rdrew5954@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 9:24 AM

To: Marcus Johnson; benwikstrom@gmail.com

Subject: Building permit

To:  

Marcus Johnson, City Engineer for Birchwood Village 

 

Ben Wickstrom, City Planner for Birchwood Village  

 

From: 

Rachael and Dave Drew, homeowners of 180 Cedar St. Birchwood Village 

 

We are wri)ng this email to make clear our concerns with the current building permit submi,ed for 160 Cedar St- the 

adjacent property to our west.  

 

The nature of this lot- very narrow, long and hilly makes it very important to determine the best placement for the new 

owners as well as the surrounding neighbors. 

 

Most homes in Birchwood are built in line with the street but because this property is so long it affords the new owners 

the luxury of building their home setback from the street. The current plans have the house si2ng on a fairly large hill 

and close to the shared  property line since it is a narrow lot.  

We have many concerns about this loca)on. 

We have concerns with the height of the property.  Even though it complies with the rules it is being built on a hill and 

very close to the property line. The 35 foot height limit when built on a hill does not afford us the protec)on intended by 

that 35 5 rule. We will lose all privacy in our backyard and any kind of feel for space. We know that you are viewing the 

permit to see if it follows the guidelines set by Birchwood but as a City Planner we hoped that there might be more than 

just guidelines and rules. The value of a homeowners property might be considered.  

 

Our biggest concern is how a home built on a hill so close to our property will affect the water flow. We feel that a home 

so close at that eleva)on will mean that our yard will be the area that holds the water. Historically, during rainy periods 

and winter thaws we have had standing water in the back of our lot. We are not the only homeowners in Birchwood that 

have experienced this. With this change to the terrain we are very concerned that this will be an ongoing issue for our 

property.  

 

It was brought up by the owner that their surveyor suggested they might need to do “something” on our property to 

ensure the water stays on their lot. We gave some thought to this and decided that we don’t feel we should have to 

make changes to our property to accommodate this plan. If the current plan does not guarantee our land will be 

unharmed then a more level land loca)on should be considered by the new owners.  

 

We also have concerns about future building on the middle lot. A view from our backyard will show that if those 

property owners also choose to build high on the hill, this will mean more water moving down toward our property. 

Water displaced by this home will hit already saturated  land moving more water our way. 

 

Lastly, we are concerned with the plan the new owners have with the fill removed for their founda)on. Any placement of 

this dirt and fill on their property will impact water flow to adjacent proper)es. It will be important to know the plan in 

order to protect us or other property owners.  

 

53

marcusjo
Highlight
Our biggest concern is how a home built on a hill so close to our property will aﬀect the water ﬂow. We feel that a home so close at that eleva)on will mean that our yard will be the area that holds the water. Historically, during rainy periods and winter thaws we have had standing water in the back of our lot. We are not the only homeowners in Birchwood that have experienced this. With this change to the terrain we are very concerned that this will be an ongoing issue for our property. 



2

You are welcome any )me to go on our property to have a look. We are available any)me for ques)ons. It might also be 

interes)ng to view the lots from a higher point of view from our home. You are welcome to take a look from inside our 

second story.  

 

We would appreciate being informed as to the status of the permit once a decision is made.  We like our new neighbors 

and welcome them but this is very important to us and we feel we need to stand up for our property and its value.   

 

Rachael and Dave Drew 

Best to reach by phone - (651)808-5700 

Or email-   david.drew@sawmillmgt.com 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

54


	August 22 2024 PC Meeting Agenda FINAL.pdf
	August 22 2024 PC Meeting Packet.pdf
	August 22 2024 PC Meeting Agenda DRAFT.pdf
	7.25.2024 Birchwood PC Regular Meeting Minutes (Draft).pdf
	160 Cedar Appeal ALL.pdf
	letter from drews (1).pdf
	160 Cedar Permit RK.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	348_24-0038-approved permit (1).pdf
	348_Elevation Calcs.pdf
	Sheet1

	348_Elevation Calcs for Avery Morse 176 Cedar Lot C.pdf

	348_Avery Morse Cedar Street Plans CORRECT.pdf

	348_160 CEDAR ST - SURVEY - 03-14-24 (1) (1) (1).pdf

	160 Appeals Memo Packet 8-13-2024.pdf





